

HARVARD TRAVELLERS CLUB

YEAR BOOK

1913

CONSTITUTION

OF THE

HARVARD TRAVELLERS CLUB

ARTICLE I

NAME

1. This organization shall be called the Harvard Travellers Club.

ARTICLE II

OBJECT

1. The object of this Club shall be the promotion of intelligent travel and exploration.

ARTICLE III

MEMBERSHIP

1. The membership shall be composed of men who are interested in the object of the Club.

2. Members shall be classified as resident members, non-resident members, fellows, and honorary members.

3. Resident members are those who reside within forty miles of the State House. Resident membership shall be limited to two hundred.

4. Non-resident members are those who reside outside of this limit.

5. Fellows are elected from those members whose journeys have led them off the ordinary routes of travel.

6. Honorary members are those on whom the Club confers a mark of respect.

ARTICLE IV

ADMISSION OF MEMBERS

1. Candidates for membership shall be nominated by two members for election by the Council.
2. Nomination for membership shall be made upon an official form.
3. The nomination shall be sent to the Secretary and acted upon at the next Council meeting.
4. Nominations to Fellowship shall be made by two Fellows. Such nominations shall be printed and distributed with the notices of the next Fellows' meeting. Election to Fellowship must be by ballot. At least eleven Fellows must be present, and four-fifths of those present must vote in the affirmative in order to elect to Fellowship.
5. Honorary members shall be nominated by the Council and elected by the Fellows.

ARTICLE V

PAYMENTS

1. The Club or fiscal year shall begin at the annual meeting.
2. Resident members shall pay an initiation fee of five dollars and annual dues of five dollars, to be paid in advance.
3. Any member by payment of fifty dollars at one time is exempt from annual dues. The receipts from these payments shall be invested as a permanent fund.
4. Non-resident members shall pay an initiation fee of five dollars, but shall be exempt from further payments.
5. Members whose dues are two years in arrears shall be dropped from membership.
6. The Council shall have the right to remit *sub silentio* any payment.
7. Initiation fees shall be paid within sixty days after notification of election. At the end of this period a second notice shall be sent; and if this second notice is not acknowl-

edged within ten days, the candidate shall then forfeit his membership, unless reinstated by the Council at its next meeting.

8. Honorary members shall not be required to make any payments.

ARTICLE VI

OFFICERS AND GOVERNMENT

1. The officers of the Club shall be a President, Vice-President, Secretary, and two Councillors. These officers shall constitute a Council, which shall manage the ordinary business of the Club under the direction of the Fellows.
2. The Fellows shall have charge of all the affairs of the Club, except such as are specially delegated to the Council.
3. The Secretary shall keep the records of membership and meetings, and shall perform the duties of Treasurer of the Club.
4. The Council shall submit a report at the annual meeting.

ARTICLE VII

ELECTION OF OFFICERS

1. A nominating committee of three members, of whom at least one shall be a Fellow, and of whom none shall be an officer of the Club, shall be appointed by the Council in February to nominate officers for the ensuing year. The nominations shall be printed and distributed to all members with the notice for the April meeting. Independent nominations may be sent in writing to the Secretary, not later than May 1, by any five resident members, and these nominations shall be printed and distributed with the notice for the annual meeting.
2. The election of officers shall be by ballot at the annual meeting.

3. Any vacancy in the Council occurring during the Club year may be filled for the remainder of the term by a member elected by the Fellows.

4. Fifteen members shall constitute a quorum for the annual meeting.

ARTICLE VIII

MEETINGS

1. The regular meetings of the Club shall usually be held in Boston or Cambridge on the last Friday of the months from October to April, except that the December meeting shall usually be held on a Friday about the middle of the month.

2. The annual meeting shall be on the third Friday in May.

3. The Council shall have the right to dispense with any regular meeting except the annual meeting, and to call special meetings at such times and places as may be expedient.

4. Fellows' meetings shall be held from time to time, at the discretion of the Council, or when called for by any five Fellows.

5. All members of the Council shall be notified of the Fellows' meeting and shall act with the Fellows. Eleven Fellows shall constitute a quorum.

ARTICLE IX

RESIGNATIONS

1. Any member may withdraw from the Club by signifying his wish to do so, in a letter addressed to the Secretary. He shall, nevertheless, be liable for any unpaid dues for the year in which he signified his wish to withdraw, and he shall continue liable for annual dues until he shall have discharged all sums owed by him to the Club.

ARTICLE X

AMENDMENTS

1. This Constitution may be amended by a two-thirds vote at a Fellows' meeting, provided that the proposed amendments are printed in the call for the meeting and that at least eleven Fellows are present.

STANDING RULES

1. Members who by change of address cease to be Resident Members shall notify the Secretary by letter before the next annual meeting, otherwise they will be liable for the annual dues of the coming year.

2. Resident Members who expect to be absent from home for more than one year may have their annual dues for that year remitted if they notify the Secretary by letter of their intended absence.

3. In balloting on nominations to Fellowship, a fraction of a vote can be represented only by a full vote.

4. A committee of three, including the President *ex officio*, shall be appointed by the Fellows to consider the fitness of candidates for the Club Medal. Their findings shall be reported to the Fellows, who shall elect the medalist.

OFFICERS

1913-1914

PRESIDENT

THEODORE LYMAN

VICE-PRESIDENT

WILLIAM LORD SMITH

SECRETARY AND TREASURER

S. PRESCOTT FAY

53 State Street, Boston, Mass.

COUNCIL

THEODORE LYMAN, *Chairman*

WILLIAM LORD SMITH

S. PRESCOTT FAY

WILLIAM BROOKS CABOT

THOMAS BARBOUR

CLUB MEDALISTS

1906

WILLIAM BROOKS CABOT
For Explorations in Labrador

1907

ELLSWORTH HUNTINGTON
For Explorations in Central Asia

1908

THOMAS BARBOUR
For Zoölogical Exploration in New Guinea

1909

WILLIAM LORD SMITH
For Travel in Many Lands

1910

WILLIAM CURTIS FARABEE
For Travels in Peru

1911

WILLIAM MORRIS DAVIS
First President
Scientific Traveller

1912

ARCHIBALD CARY COOLIDGE
An Historian Who Travels

HONORARY MEMBERS

HON. W. W. ROCKHILL

PROF. NILS OTTO GUSTAF NORDENSKJÖLD

SIR COLIN CAMPBELL SCOTT-MONCRIEFF

CAPT. ROBERT A. BARTLETT

DR. C. HART MERRIAM

RESIDENT MEMBERS

AND TRAVELS

Abbot, Edwin H., Jr., ‡ 1 Follen Street, Cambridge.
Greece and Constantinople.

Adams, Prof. Comfort A., 13 Farrar Street, Cambridge.
Alaska, 1890; Algiers, 1905; Northern Tyrol, 1911.

Agassiz, G. R., * ‡ 14 Ashburton Place, Boston.
Island of Yezo, Japan; Society Islands, Marquesas Islands, Northern New Zealand.

Allen, Glover Morrill, * ‡ 234 Berkeley Street, Boston.
British East Africa Protectorate, 1909; Newfoundland, 1903; Bahama Islands, 1904; Labrador, 1906; Grenada, B. W. I., 1910; Egypt and the Eastern Sudan, 1913.

Allen, Herbert Spencer, 240 Commonwealth Avenue, Boston.
Bahama Islands, 1899; Canada, 1910; Cochiti Pueblo, New Mexico, 1913.

Amory, Copley, 9 Elmwood Avenue, Cambridge.

Andrews, George Frederick, 12 Dearborn Road, Tufts College.
Morocco, Algeria, Tunis, and Sahara, 1900-1906; Turkey, Roumania, Bulgaria, 1905.

Bacon, Carl Edward, 66 Beacon Street, Boston.
Morocco, 1904; Japan, China, Java, Straits Settlements, Burma, India, Ceylon, Egypt, 1906-1907; Russia, Turkestan, Turkey, Greece, Palestine, Syria, Egypt, Indo-China, Japan, Korea, Siberia, 1909-1911.

Bailey, Prof. Irving W., 80 Buckingham Street, Cambridge.
Colombia, Ecuador, Peru, 1893-1897; Mexico, 1897-1898; Guatemala, Nicaragua, Costa Rica, 1898.

Bailey, Prof. Solon I., * Harvard Observatory, Cambridge.
Jamaica, W. I., 1885-1902; Peru, 1889, 1905; Chile, Bolivia, 1889-1891; Mexico, 1898-1911; Cape Colony, Natal, O. R. C., Rhodesia, 1908-1909.

Bangs, Outram, Museum of Comparative Zoölogy, Cambridge.

Barbour, Edmund Dana, 344 Beacon Street, Boston.
Cape Verde Islands, Cape Colony, Mauritius, Singapore, China, 1863; China, 1864, 1865, 1866; Saigon, Calcutta, Mooltan, Kur-

* Fellow

‡ Life member

rachee, and Bombay, Egypt, Palestine, Turkey, Greece, 1867; Japan, 1868; Singapore, 1871; Serbia, Bulgaria, Russia, Finland, 1883-1884; Asia Minor, Algeria, Tunis, Sahara, 1888-1889; Serbia, Trinopolis, Madras, Khyber Pass, Kashmir, Darjeeling, to Calcutta, 1892-1893; Azores, 1906.

Barbour, Thomas,* 195 Fisher Avenue, Brookline.
Bahama Islands, B. W. I., 1901, 1905; Bermuda, 1904, 1905; India and Burma, 1906; Java, Celebes, Moluccas, New Guinea, Cochin China, China, and Japan, 1907; Southern Brazil, Argentina, Chile, 1908; Bolivia, Peru, 1909; Central America, Panama, Jamaica, Cuba, 1909; Southern Mexico, 1910; Cuba, 1911-1912, 1913.

Bartlett, Capt. Robert A., Boston City Club, Boston.
Arctic regions, 1908-1909; Greenland, Baffin Land, 1910.

Barton, Prof. George Hunt,* 16 Lexington Avenue, Cambridge.
Canada, Northern Wisconsin, 1873-1874; Hawaiian Islands (Oahu, Maui, Hawaii), 1881-1882, 1883, 1904; Cape Breton, 1884, 1885, 1896, 1906; Labrador, Newfoundland, 1885, 1896; British Columbia, Alberta, 1892, 1904, 1911; Greenland, Baffin Land, Labrador, 1896.

Batchelder, Charles C., 48 Beacon Street, Boston.
Jamaica, 1907; Egypt, Sudan, 1910.

Bates, Oric, 4 Otis Place, Boston.
Finland, 1907; Nubia, Syria, Egypt, 1908; Malta, Tripoli, Nubia, Algeria, 1909; Syria, Libyan Desert, Suvah Oasis, Unim es Shaitah, Egypt, 1910; Anglo-Egyptian Sudan, Egypt, 1911-1912.

Bazeley, William A. L., 116 Commonwealth Avenue, Boston.

Beebe, Dr. Theodore Chapin, 416 Marlboro Street, Boston.
Egypt, 1902.

Bigelow, Joseph S., Jr., Cohasset.
Egypt, Algiers, 1903; Brazil, Argentina, Uruguay, Paraguay, 1901; Mexico, Cuba, 1902; Porto Rico, 1898; St. Thomas, Martinique, Santa Lucia, St. Christopher, Jamaica, 1899; Cayman Group, Rancadore Keys, Old Providence Island, Panama, 1906; Newfoundland, Canada, 1909; Labrador, 1907; Solomon Islands, Fiji Islands, Hawaiian Islands, 1908-1909.

Bigelow, Robert Payne, 11 Park Street, Brookline.
Jamaica, 1891-1893; Bahamas, 1892; Dalmatia, 1910.

Blake, J. Henry, North Cambridge.
West Indies, 1871; Brazil, Uruguay, Patagonia, Tierra del Fuego, Chile, Juan Fernandez, Peru, Galapagos Islands, Panama, Mexico, 1872.

Blake, Robert Fulton, 212 Beacon Street, Boston.

Blake, Robert Parkman,*[‡] Millis.
Kadiak Islands, Cook's Inlet, Alaska Peninsula, 1901; British Columbia, Canada, 1906.

Bosson, Albert Davis, 27 Hereford Street, Boston.
Mediterranean Ports, 1874; Morocco, 1895, 1898, 1903; Dalmatia, Bosnia, Montenegro, 1910.

Bowditch, Charles P.,* 111 Devonshire Street, Boston.
Malta, 1898; Mexico, Cuba, 1888, 1903; Nassau, Honduras, 1890; Algeria, Tunisia, 1898, 1901, 1902; Philippines, Hongkong, Singapore, Java, Japan, Korea, 1910-1911.

Bowditch, Dr. Harold, 60 Harvard Avenue, Brookline.
Bermuda, 1903.

Bowditch, Dr. Henry Ingersoll, 416 Marlboro Street, Boston.

Bradley, Charles Frederick, 90 Mt. Vernon Street, Boston.
Egypt, Turkey, Syria, 1882-1883; Russia, 1890; Sicily, 1902; Morocco, Hawaii, Japan, China, Siam, Malay Peninsula, Ceylon, Burma, India, Java, 1903; West India Islands, Panama, Venezuela, 1911.

Bremer, Dr. John Lewis,*[‡] 295 Marlboro Street, Boston.
Russia, Siberia, Korea, Japan, China, Malay, Java, Ceylon, 1902; Panama, Cuba.

Brooks, Gorham, 60 State Street, Boston.
British East Africa, 1909.

Brooks, J. Edward, 229 Adams Street, Milton.

Bryant, Edward Sohler, 39 Asticou Road, Forest Hills.
Labrador and Newfoundland, 1906, 1908.

Burr, Allston, 60 State Street, Boston.

Cabot, Dr. Hugh, 87 Marlboro Street, Boston.

Cabot, Samuel, 141 Milk Street, Boston.
Head waters of Columbia and Saskatchewan Rivers, British Columbia and Alberta, 1906; Brazil, Argentine Republic, Uruguay, Chile, Peru, Panama, Canal Zone, Jamaica, and Barbados, 1913.

Cabot, William Brooks,* 447 Marlboro Street, Boston.
Saguenay Basin, rivers Ashuapmouchouan, Peribonka, Shipshaw, and Manouan; also rivers Bersimis and Manicouagan, and Lake Mistassini; extensively in Labrador.

Castle, William Richard, Jr., 243 Beacon Street, Boston.
Russia (Transcaucasia), 1908; Hawaii.

Chase, Alfred E., 19 Congress Street, Boston.
British Columbia, Alaska, 1901; Egypt, India, Burma, Japan, 1905-1906.

Chase, Prof. George Henry, 11 Kirkland Road, Cambridge.
Greece, Balkan States, 1896, 1898; Western Asia Minor, 1898.

Chase, Philip P., 241 Highland Street, Milton.
Alaska, 1901.

Chase, Dr. Walter G., 279 Marlboro Street, Boston.

Clark, Alfred S., 41 Hawthorn Street, Cambridge.

Clark, Elton, 10 Post Office Square, Boston.

Cobb, Augustus S., 340 Adams Street, Milton.
Alberta, British Columbia, 1905; Bermuda, 1907.

Cobb, Stanley, 340 Adams Street, Milton.
Magdalen Islands, 1906; British Columbia, Alberta, 1907.

Cochrane, F. Douglas, 40 Central Street, Boston.
Canada, 1906; Mexico, Sonora, 1904; Japan, Korea, China, Malay Peninsula, India, Kashmir, 1899-1900.

Codman, Russell S., 50 Congress Street, Boston.
Corsica, 1891; Lesser Antilles, Venezuela, 1890; North Wales, 1909.

Coffin, Winthrop, 60 State Street, Boston.

Coolidge, Prof. Archibald Cary,* 130 Beacon Street, Boston.
Japan, China, Java, India, Ceylon, Egypt, 1889, 1890; Sicily, Russia, Persia, 1890, 1892; Siberia, 1895; Peking, Korea, Japan, Philippines, Siam, Burma, India, British East Africa, Uganda, 1905-1906.

Coolidge, John Gardner, 304 Berkeley Street, Boston.
Turkey, Balkan States, Russia, 1894, 1910; Siberia, China, Japan, Korea, Philippines, Java, Cochin China, Cambodia, Siam, Malay States, Straits Settlements, Burma, India, Ceylon, 1887-1906; Egypt, Cape Colony, Natal, Zululand, Transvaal, Lourenço Marquez, Zanzibar, 1900; Canada, Mexico, Nicaragua, West Indies, Panama, 1898, 1901-1902; Venezuela, Brazil, 1891, 1892, 1894; Queensland, New South Wales, Victoria, Tasmania, New Zealand, South Sea Islands, 1899; Egypt, Ceylon, India, Burma, Java, China, Japan, Siberia, 1913.

Coolidge, John T., Jr., 114 Beacon Street, Boston.
British East Africa, 1910, 1913.

Cross, Charles R., Jr.,* Upland Road, Brookline.
Alberta, 1906; Cassiar, 1907; Alaska Peninsula, 1908; Kenai, 1909; Newfoundland, 1910-1911, 1912; British Columbia, 1913.

Cunningham, Dr. John H., Jr., 46 Gloucester Street, Boston.
Cuba, Yucatan, Mexico, 1912.

Curtis, George Carroll, 11 Weyanoke Street, Boston.
Etna, Stromboli, 1900; West Indian volcanoes, Pacific Coral Islands, 1902; Society Archipelago, Bora Bora Aquillé, New Zealand, 1904; Hawaiian craters, Haleakala, Halemauman, Mauna Loa, and Mokuaweoweo, 1905; Florida Keys, 1906; Eastern Newfoundland, 1910-1911; Sandwich Islands; Kilauea volcano; Java; Japan, China, Philippines, Ceylon, India, Egypt.

Curtis, James F., 28 Mt. Vernon Street, Boston.
Canada, Alaska, 1902; Maritime Provinces of Canada, 1911.

Curtiss, Frederic Haines, 63 Bay State Road, Boston.
West Indies, South America, Venezuela, 1893; Bermuda, Jamaica, 1900; Tangier, 1907.

Daly, Prof. Reginald A.,* 23 Hawthorn Street, Cambridge.
Russia, Turkey, Greece, 1896-1897; Asia Minor, 1897; Labrador, 1900; British Columbia, 1906; Mexico, 1906; Hawaii, 1909.

Dana, Richard Henry, 113 Brattle Street, Cambridge.
Greece, 1875-1876, 1912-1913; Egypt, 1882; Sicily, 1907; around Cape Horn, 1879-1880.

Davis, Prof. William M.,* 81 St. Paul Street, Brookline.
Mexico, 1904-1906; Alaska, 1909; Argentina, Chile, 1870-1873; Egypt, 1878, 1905; South Africa, 1905; Japan, China, India, 1877-1878; Turkestan, Russia, 1903; Montana, 1913.

Dixon, Prof. Roland B.,* 131 Westmorly Court, Cambridge.
British Columbia, 1898, 1907; Mexico, 1910; Siberia, Mongolia, 1901; Australia, New Zealand, Fiji Islands, Tasmania, 1909; India, Kashmir, Hunza-Nagar, Baltistan, Ladak, Lahaul, Kulu, Assam, Ceylon, Burma, Upper Shan States, Federated Malay States, Java, China, Korea, Japan, 1912-1913.

Donald, Gordon, 252 Summer Street, Boston.
Australia and New Zealand, 1909-1910; Tahiti, Australia, 1910-1911.

Dorr, George B.,* 18 Commonwealth Avenue, Boston.

Drew, Edward B.,* 48 Garden Street, Cambridge.
Japan, China, Korea, 1865-1906.

Drinkwater, Arthur, 50 Buckingham Street, Cambridge.

Eastman, Dr. Theodore J., 71 Marlboro Street, Boston.
Canada, 1897, 1900, 1912, 1913; Hudson's Bay, 1903; Hungary, 1907.

Endicott, Thorndike H., 131 Marlboro Street, Boston.
British Columbia, Alberta, 1904-1905.

Farley, J. Wells,* 84 State Street, Boston.
Japan, China, Malay Peninsula, India, Ceylon, 1899-1900; British Columbia, 1903; Alaska, Mexico, 1910.

Faulkner, Dr. William E., 290 Marlboro Street, Boston.

Fay, Prof. Charles E.,* Tufts College, Medford.
British Columbia.

Fay, S. Prescott, 53 State Street, Boston.
British Columbia and Alaska, 1906; British Columbia and Alberta, 1912, 1913.

Field, William L. W., 378 Canton Avenue, Milton.
Canada, West Indies; Panama, Costa Rica, 1913.

Fish, Erland F., 201 Buckminster Road, Brookline.

Forbes, Dr. Alexander, Milton.

Bahama Islands, Trinidad, Hayti, Jamaica, Cuba, 1892; Vancouver Island, British Columbia, Canada, Alaska, 1899, 1900, 1910.

Forbes, Edward W., Fogg Art Museum, Cambridge.

Canada, British Columbia, 1897; Greece, 1899, 1905, 1907; Palestine, Syria, 1901; Crete, 1905; Honolulu, 1906; China, Philippine Islands, Straits Settlements, Burma, India, Egypt, Japan, 1907.

Forbes, Francis Murray, 60 State Street, Boston.

Forbes, Gerrit,* 614 Sears Building, Boston.

Labrador, 1899; Alaska, 1904; British East Africa, 1907-1908; Cape Horn, 1910; Mexico, 1911; Keewatin, 1911; sources of Nile and Congo Rivers, Uganda, Belgian Congo, and Sudan, 1912; second expedition among wild tribes of Nile-Congo watershed, 1913.

Forbes, W. Cameron, 614 Sears Building, Boston.

British Columbia, Cape Breton, 1900-1901; Cuba, St. Thomas, St. Christopher, St. Lucia, Martinique, Trinidad, Jamaica, 1892; Greece, 1893; Africa, Egypt, 1894, 1909; Mexico, 1898; Japan, 1904, 1905, 1906, 1907, 1908; Aden, Straits Settlements, Penang, Hongkong, Ceylon, 1909, 1913; Shanghai, Philippine Islands, from the Cagayan River at the north through the mountain provinces south to Baguio; Honolulu, Cairo, Suez, Colombo, Singapore, Darien, Trans-Siberian Railway; Canton, Saigon (Indo-China), Kuala Lumpur, Burma, India, 1912-1913.

Frothingham, Francis E., 60 State Street, Boston.

Canada, Southern Provinces, Alaska, 1900-1912; Cuba, Jamaica, Canal Zone, Perlas Islands, and extreme Southern Panama, via Gulf of Darien.

Fuller, Robert G., "Nawn Farm," Dover.

British Columbia, 1907, 1908, 1909.

Furlong, Charles Wellington,* Pierce Building, Copley Square, Boston.

Morocco, Algeria, Tunisia, Tripolitania, 1902-1904; Argentina, Chile, Patagonia, Tierra del Fuego, Peru, Ecuador, Uruguay, 1907-1908; Venezuela, Guianas, Brazil, Uruguay, Argentina, Chile, 1910; Jamaica, Trinidad, Iles de Salut, Isla Margerita, Coche, Panama; Canadian Northwest; Mexico.

Gardiner, J. Pennington, 60 Federal Street, Boston.

Newfoundland, 1908; Eastern Canada, 1909-1910.

Gardner, G. Peabody, Jr., Chestnut Hill.

Russia, Trans-Siberian Manchuria, Korea, Japan, China, Philippines, Jolo, Basilan, Zamboanga, and other islands, 1910; Java, Singapore, Burma, India, Egypt, Greece, Constantinople, 1911; Algiers, Constantine, El-Kantara, Sahara, Biskra, Touggourt, 1913.

George, E. Howard, 40 Central Street, Boston.

British Columbia, 1910; Cuba, 1901, 1905, 1912; Canadian Rockies, 1911.

Gilman, Bradley, Canton.

Morocco, Algeria, Egypt, 1906, 1910; Syria, 1904; Greece, Turkey; around the world, 1913.

Goodwin, Prof. Harry M., Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Boston.

Russia, 1894.

Gray, Morris, Jr., 9 University Hall, Cambridge.

Algeria, Greece, Constantinople, Egypt, Jidda, Suakim, India, Ceylon, Burma, Malay States, Siam, China, Philippine Islands, Japan, Hawaii, 1906-1907.

Gray, Ralph Weld, 8 Beacon Street, Boston.

Alaska, 1900; Newfoundland, 1902.

Grew, Henry S., 254 Marlboro Street, Boston.

Hale, Richard K., 85 Water Street, Boston.

Hale, Richard Walden, 16 Central Street, Boston.

Venezuela, 1892; British Columbia, Alaska, 1890; Newfoundland, Labrador, 1902.

Hall, William S., 6 Follen Street, Cambridge.

Hart, Prof. Albert Bushnell, 19 Craigie Street, Cambridge.

Northwest and British Columbia, 1908; Japan, China, Philippines, Malay States, India, Egypt, 1908-1909; Greece, 1903; Servia, Macedonia, Turkey, Asia Minor, Roumania, Bulgaria, Bosnia-Herzegovina, Montenegro, Dalmatia.

Hartt, Arthur W., 87 Milk Street, Boston.

Hedge, William R., 137 Milk Street, Boston.

Henderson, Walter Power, 144 Congress Street, Boston.

Peru, 1869-1871; Canada, 1896, 1909, 1910.

Holmes, Edward Jackson,*‡ 296 Beacon Street, Boston.

Howard, Prof. Albert A., 12 Walker Street, Cambridge.

Howe, Dr. George P.,* 154 Beacon Street, Boston.

Alaska, 1905-1906; Labrador, 1911; Yucatan, 1911.

Hutchins, Edward W., 166 Beacon Street, Boston.

Irving, Dr. Frederick C., 96 Bay State Road, Boston.

Jackson, Charles, 19 Congress Street, Boston.

Jaggard, Prof. Thomas A.,* Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Boston.

Aleutian Islands, 1907; Caribbean Islands, 1902; Costa Rica, Guatemala, Panama, 1910; Japan, Hawaii, 1909; Labrador, 1890; Newfoundland, 1891.

Kennedy, George G., Readville.

Cuba, 1864; Algiers, Egypt, Jerusalem, Athens, Constantinople, 1894.

Kennedy, Dr. Harris, 286 Warren Street, Roxbury.

Bahama Islands, 1900; Bermuda Islands, Manila, Japan, 1902; Hawaiian Islands, 1910.

Kennedy, Sinclair,*‡ 286 Warren Street, Roxbury.

The Quebec Labrador, 1895; Japan, China ports, Java, India, Cairo, 1897-1898; Japan, China ports, Philippines, 1902; Newfoundland, 1905, 1906; Newfoundland Labrador, 1908; Trans-Siberian Railway to Japan, 1909; Panama, 1910; South Seas, New Zealand, Eastern Australia, Java, Siam, Malay Peninsula, Ceylon, Mauritius, South Africa, 1911-1913.

Lawrence, Rosewell B., 745 Tremont Building, Boston.

Russia, 1882; Japan, 1891; Egypt, Palestine, Turkey, Greece, 1892; Venezuela, 1908; British Columbia, Alaska, 1891; Mexico, 1887; Panama, West Indies, 1908; Scandinavia, 1909.

Lewis, Samuel W., 32 Harvard Avenue, Brookline.

Around the world, 1900-1901.

Lincoln, George L., 2000 Commonwealth Avenue, Boston.

Morocco, 1895; Islands of Caribbean Sea, 1904; Canada, 1907.

Little, Amos R., 18 Tremont Street, Boston.

Canada, 1904; Labrador and Newfoundland.

Little, John Mason, 317 Dartmouth Street, Boston.

Labrador, Newfoundland.

Locke, Dr. Edwin A., 311 Beacon Street, Boston.

Loud, Charles E., 73 Beacon Street, Boston.

Lyman, Prof. Theodore,*‡ Brookline.

Cassiar, British Columbia, 1900, 1911; British East Africa, 1908; Korea, 1906; Highlands of Siberia, 1912.

Mark, Prof. Edward Laurens, 109 Irving Street, Cambridge.

British Columbia, 1906; The Bermudas, 1903-1905, 1907-1913.

Merriman, Prof. Roger B., 175 Brattle Street, Cambridge.

Newfoundland, 1909; Algeria, Morocco, 1911.

Mixter, Dr. Charles G., 180 Marlboro Street, Boston.

Alaska, 1899; Alaska Peninsula, 1908; Newfoundland, 1902.

Mixter, Samuel,‡ 180 Marlboro Street, Boston.

British Columbia, 1910.

Mixter, Dr. Samuel J., 180 Marlboro Street, Boston.

Mixter, Dr. William Jason, 42 Fairfield Street, Boston.

Alaska, 1899; Newfoundland, 1903; British Columbia, 1906; Lower California, 1910.

Moore, Prof. Edward Caldwell, 21 Kirkland Street, Cambridge.

Russia, Turkey, 1884, 1910; India, Ceylon, Straits Settlements, China (ten provinces), Japan, Siberia, Egypt, 1907; Labrador, Newfoundland, 1905.

Munro, Prof. William Bennett, 167 Marlboro Street, Boston.

Egypt, 1897; Northern Canada, 1900, 1911; Northern Mexico, 1913.

Nash, Chauncey C., 31 Massachusetts Avenue, Boston.

Olmsted, Prof. Frederick Law, 99 Warren Street, Brookline.

Cuba, Jamaica, 1906, 1907, 1909; Panama, 1911; Panama, Canal Zone, 1913.

Palfrey, Dr. Francis W., 80 Marlboro Street, Boston.

Parker, Edmund M., 131 State Street, Boston.

Canada, 1876, 1911-1912; Russia, 1878; Greece and Turkey, 1879.

Peabody, W. Rodman, 70 State Street, Boston.

Pearmain, Sumner Bass, 388 Beacon Street, Boston.

Perkins, John Forbes,* Bradley Road, Milton.

Russia, Greece, Turkey, 1900; Japan, China, Singapore, Java, Burma, India, Turkestan, Russian Armenia, 1900; Egypt, Alaska, British Columbia, 1903.

Perkins, Robert Forbes, 35 Congress Street, Boston.

British Columbia, 1889.

Pfaff, Dr. Franz,‡ 29 Gloucester Street, Boston.

Northern Brazil, 1886-1889.

Phillips, Dr. John Charles,*‡ Wenham.

Labrador and Greenland, 1896; Alaska, British Columbia, 1897; China, Japan, Korea, 1906; Manchuria, Egypt, Sudan, 1908; Mexico, 1907-1910; Newfoundland, 1910; Serma, East Sudan, 1912-1913.

Phillips, William, 79 Mt. Vernon Street, Boston.

China, Manchuria, Upper Yangtse River, 1905-1907; Central America, from Panama to Mexico, 1909.

Phippen, Dr. Hardy, 84 Washington Square, Salem.

Pickering, Prof. William H.,* Harvard College Observatory, Cambridge.
British America, Alaska, 1878-1909; Peru, Bolivia, Chile, 1890-1893; Hawaii, 1905; Lesser Antilles, 1886; Azores, 1907.

Pierce, Walworth, 13 Bay State Road, Boston.
Japan, China, Java, Burma, India, Ceylon, 1899-1900; Egypt, 1900; Greece, Turkey, Bulgaria, Servia, 1900.

Porter, Dr. Charles Allen, 254 Beacon Street, Boston.

Putnam, Dr. Charles P., 63 Marlboro Street, Boston.

Putnam, Prof. Frederic W.,* 149 Brattle Street, Cambridge.

Quinby, Dr. William C., 396 Marlboro Street, Boston.

Raymer, Prof. George Sharp,* 51 Brattle Street, Cambridge.

Remick, John A., Jr., 300 Marlboro Street, Boston.

Rice, John C., 714 Shawmut Bank Building, Boston.
Canada, 1905-1908.

Richardson, Dr. Edward P., 224 Beacon Street, Boston.
Newfoundland, 1901; Alaska, British Columbia, 1907.

Ropes, Prof. James Hardy, 13 Follen Street, Cambridge.
Canadian Northwest, 1912; Panama, 1913.

Ross, Denman W., 24 Craigie Street, Cambridge.
Japan, China, Tonkin, Annam, Cochin China, Straits Settlements, Burma, India, Ceylon, Egypt, 1912-1913.

Rotch, Dr. Thomas Morgan, 197 Commonwealth Avenue, Boston.
Spitzbergen, 1906-1907; Bavaria, 1909.

Schofield, Prof. William Henry, 21 Commonwealth Avenue, Boston.
Ontario, 1885; Spitzbergen, 1907; Iceland, Spitzbergen, 1910.

Scott, Hugh D., Wellesley.
British Columbia, 1894, 1909; Eastern Canada, Brazil, Argentina, Uruguay, 1904; Chile, Peru, Ecuador, Panama, 1905; Greece, Albania, 1893; Arabia, India, Ceylon, Andaman Islands, Burma, Malay Peninsula, Borneo, Philippines, China, Japan, 1894; Algiers, 1911; Egypt, 1894.

Shattuck, Charles E., 19 Congress Street, Boston.

Shattuck, Dr. George Cheever,* 135 Marlboro Street, Boston.
British Columbia, 1902; China, Japan, Philippines, Java, India, 1906-1907; Newfoundland, 1911.

Shattuck, Henry L.,‡ 60 State Street, Boston.
Barbados, Dominica, 1907.

Smith, Harrison W.,* Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Boston.
Sumatra (west coast), Japan, 1901; Society Islands, Java, Spice Islands, New Guinea, 1909; Sarawak, 1911-1912.

Smith, John Duke, 84 State Street, Boston.

Smith, Joseph Lindon, 93 Mt. Vernon Street, Boston.
British Columbia, Canada, 1891; Sicily, Greece, Turkey, Palestine, Southern India, Malay Peninsula, Cambodia, China, Manchuria, Korea, Egypt, Nubia, Hawaii, Java, Japan, Ceylon, 1911.

Smith, Dr. William Lord,* St. Botolph Club, 2 Newbury Street, Boston.
Russia, 1888; Greece, Turkey, 1891; Alaska, 1898; Mexico, 1906; Tripoli, Tunis, Morocco, Corsica, Malta, 1891; Egypt, 1897; Somaliland, 1892; British East Africa, 1909; Asia Minor, 1891; Japan, China, Korea, Formosa, India, Ceylon, Arabia, Persia, Java, Celebes, New Guinea, 1902-1903.

Smyth, Prof. Henry Lloyd, Belmont Street, Watertown.

Smyth, Prof. Herbert Weir, 15 Elmwood Avenue, Cambridge.
Greece, 1900-1901; Egypt, Asia Minor, 1907.

Standish, Dr. Myles, 256 Newbury Street, Boston.

Stevenson, Robert H., Jr., 357 Beacon Street, Boston.
Argentine Republic, Uruguay, Brazil, 1904; Australia, New Zealand, 1902, 1903, 1904; India, Ceylon, 1903; Egypt, 1910.

Stone, J. Sidney, 52 River Street, Boston.

Strong, Richard P., Hotel Puritan, Boston.
Manila and Philippine Islands, 1899; Southern China, 1900-1901; Japan, 1902; Egypt, 1903-1907; Ceylon, India, Burma, 1907; North China and Manchuria, 1911; South America, Jamaica, Panama, Ecuador, Peru, 1913.

Sweet, Henry N.,‡ 63 Mt. Vernon Street, Boston.
Yucatan, 1889; Cuba, 1902; Panama, 1912; Bermuda and Canadian Northwest, 1913.

Talbot, Dr. Fritz B.,‡ 100 Cottage Farm Road, Brookline.
China, Japan, Malay Peninsula, India, Burma, Hawaii, 1900, 1901; Bermuda, 1894.

Thaxter, Prof. Roland, 7 Scott Street, Cambridge.
West Indies, Jamaica, 1890; Cape Verd Islands, Brazil, Argentina, Middle and South Chile, Straits of Magellan, Falkland Islands, 1905-1906; West Indies, Grenada, Trinidad, Tobago, 1912-1913.

Thayer, Gordon Woods, 16 Oxford Street, Cambridge.

Thayer, William Roscoe, 8 Berkeley Street, Cambridge.
Egypt, Palestine, 1887; Greece, Turkey, 1906-1907.

- Thorndike, Dr. Augustus L., ‡ 191 Commonwealth Avenue, Boston.
Greece, Malta, Algeria, Egypt, Palestine, Turkey, 1895; Sicily, 1898, 1905; Canadian Northwest, 1903; Algeria, Tunisia, 1905.
- Thorndike, Dr. Townsend W., * ‡ 20 Newbury Street, Boston.
Northwestern coast of Africa, Canadian Northwest, and Alaska.
- Thorp, Joseph G., 115 Brattle Street, Cambridge.
Canadian Northwest, 1901, 1910.
- Townsend, Dr. Charles Wendell, 76 Marlboro Street, Boston.
Labrador, 1906, 1909, 1912.
- Tozzer, Dr. Alfred M., * Peabody Museum, Cambridge.
Mexico, Central America, 1902, 1903, 1904, 1905, 1910, 1911; Africa, 1906; Iceland and Spitzbergen, 1912.
- Tucker, Herman L., 206 Church Street, Newton.
West Indies, 1899; Mexico, Central America, 1906-1907; Alaska, Mt. McKinley region, 1910; Southern Peru, 1911.
- Vincent, Dr. Beth, 295 Beacon Street, Boston.
- Wakefield, Julius R., 17 Court Street, Boston.
Mexico, 1899, 1901; Jamaica, 1906; Canadian Northwest, 1908; Algeria, Tunisia, 1911.
- Walcott, Charles, 87 Milk Street, Boston.
- Walcott, Robert, * 910 Barristers Hall, Boston.
India, Burma, China, Japan, Java, 1895-1896; Newfoundland, 1902; Labrador, gulf coast, 1903; Labrador, east coast, 1904; Canadian Rockies, 1906.
- Ward, Prof. Robert de C., * 11 Fayerweather Street, Cambridge.
Turkey, Greece, Egypt, 1890; Southern Brazil, Argentina, Chile, Peru, Bolivia, Panama, 1897-1898; Brazil (a member of Shaler Memorial Expedition), 1908; Brazil, 1910.
- Warner, Langdon, * care R. S. Warner, 84 State Street, Boston.
Egypt, Turkey, Central Asian Khanates, Russia, Turkestan, Persia, 1909; Japan, China, Philippines, Korea, 1906, 1907, 1908, 1910, 1911; Korea and China, 1913.
- Warner, Roger S., 84 State Street, Boston.
- Watson, Dr. Francis S., 92 Marlboro Street, Boston.
- Wells, Edgar H., 16 Hereford Street, Boston.
- Wheelock, Charles B., 107 Water Street, Boston.
- White, Prof. Charles H., Rotch Building, Cambridge.
Western Ontario, 1900, 1901.

- White, Prof. Horatio S., 29 Reservoir Street, Cambridge.
Corsica, Scandinavia, Russia, 1874; Egypt, Palestine, 1875; Azores, 1894; Helgoland, 1905.
- Williams, Dr. Francis H., 505 Beacon Street, Boston.
Egypt, 1875; Japan, China, India, 1874-1875; Mexico, 1889; Alaska, 1897, 1909.
- Wolbach, Dr. S. Burt, Harvard Medical School, Boston.
Big Horn Basin and Wind River Mountains, 1897; Northern Mexico, Yaqui River Country, 1903-1904; Gambia, West Africa, 1911-1912.
- Woods, Dr. Frederick Adams, * 1006 Beacon Street, Brookline.
Alaska, Japan, China, Egypt, 1902; West Indies, 1907; Tunisia, 1913.

Worthington, John W., 60 State Street, Boston.

NON-RESIDENT MEMBERS

- Alsberg, Dr. Carl Lucas, Cosmos Club, Washington, D. C.
- Baldwin, Roger Nash, 911 Locust Street, St. Louis, Mo.
Greece, Sicily, Tunis, 1905, 1906; British Columbia, 1913.
- Barnes, Cecil, 20 East Goethe Street, Chicago, Ill.
- Barrett, R. L.,* Windsor, Vt.
- Baynes, Ernest H., Meriden, N. H.
- Bell, Dr. J. Mackintosh,* "Old Burnside," Almonte, Ontario, Canada.
Canada, 1901-1904; New Zealand, 1905-1911; New Caledonia, 1911; Australia, Tasmania, 1911; Russia, Siberia (Kerghiz), 1911; Central Russias, Turkestan, 1912; wilds of Northern Ontario, 1913.
- Bingham, Prof. Hiram, Yale University, New Haven, Conn.
Hawaii, 1900, 1903; Cuba, Jamaica, 1902; Porto Rico, Vieques, Curaçao, Venezuela, Colombia, Costa Rica, 1906-1907; Brazil, Uruguay, Argentine Republic, Bolivia, Chile, Peru, Panama, Jamaica, 1908-1909; Cuba, Jamaica, Panama, Peru, 1911; Southern Peru, 1912.
- Bridgman, Herbert L., 604 Carlton Avenue, Brooklyn, N. Y.
Greenland, 1894-1899, 1901; The Sudan, 1905; Madeira, Fiume, Ragusa, Belgrade, Sofia, Budapest, Salzburg, 1913.
- Brown, Prof. Charles Wilson, 37 Barnes Street, Providence, R. I.
Jamaica, 1907.
- Bryant, Owen,‡ Brooks, Alberta, Canada.
Nova Scotia, Quebec, 1897; Bermuda, 1903; Bahamas, 1904; Newfoundland, 1905, 1906; Labrador, 1908; Japan, China Straits, Java, 1909; Alberta, 1912.
- Camsell, Charles,* Geological Survey, Ottawa, Canada.
McKenzie, Canada, 1894, 1895, 1896, 1899, 1900; North British Columbia, Yukon, 1897-1898; Northern Ontario, 1901-1903; Manitoba, 1903; Peace River, Alberta, 1902; Keewatin, 1904; Yukon, McKenzie, Alaska, 1905; South British Columbia, 1906, 1907, 1908, 1909, 1910, 1911.
- Carroll, Lauren, 4 East 64th Street, New York City.
- Carver, Prof. Thomas N., Washington, D. C.

- Chadbourne, William Merriam, 37 Madison Avenue, New York City.
Russia, Turkestan, Persia, Transcaucasia, 1903; India, Burma, Siam, Syria, Java, China, Japan, Philippines, Manchuria, Egypt, 1904; Alaska, British Columbia, 1895.
- Chandler, Charles Lyon, care Department of State, Washington, D. C.
Japan, China, Siberia, 1906, 1908; Uruguay, Argentina, Peru, 1908-1911; Northern Peru, 1912.
- Cleghorn, Dr. Allen M.,* 20 Albion Street, Brantford, Ontario, Canada.
N. S. W. Victoria, Western Australia, Ceylon, 1897-1899; Tierra del Fuego, Chile, Brazil, Argentina, 1899-1901; British Columbia, 1909; Northern Ontario, 1911.
- Colby, Francis T.,* 19 Cedar Street, New York City.
British Columbia, Fraser River, and Selkirk Mountains, 1904; India, China, Japan, Swamp Jungles of Southern Ceylon, 1905; Alaska, Behring Sea, Alaska Peninsula, and Kanai Peninsula, 1907; East Equatorial Africa, 1910; Panama, Jamaica, 1913.
- Cole, Leon J., University of Wisconsin, Madison, Wis.
British Columbia, Alaska, 1899; Bermuda, 1903; Yucatan, 1904.
- Davis, Edward M., Shirley, Mass.
Mexico, 1906; Alaska, 1909.
- de Milhau, Louis John,*‡ 20 Exchange Place, New York City.
Iceland, Ireland, Canada, 1905; Panama, Peru, Bolivia, Brazil, Chile, Maramoré River, 1907; Province of Quebec, Santa Lucia, West Indies, 1908, 1911; Egypt, Sudan, Algiers, 1909; Cuba, Porto Rico, Jamaica, Martinique, St. Thomas, Venezuela, Trinidad, 1913.
- Dodge, Prof. Richard Elwood, Teachers College, New York City.
- Drew, Charles D.,* care J. G. White & Co., Ltd., Callao 202, Buenos Aires, Argentina.
Central and Northern Luzon, Philippine Islands, 1903; Central and Northeastern Argentina, 1907-1908; Santa Valley, Peru, 1909; Sierras de Cordova, Argentina, 1910-1911.
- Dyer, Lyman Tiffany, 8 East 86th Street, New York City.
Porto Rico, 1899; Japan, China, Burma, Java, India, Kashmir, 1900-1901.
- Farabee, William Curtis, University Museum, Philadelphia, Pa.
Mexico, British Columbia, Alberta, 1904-1909; Iceland, 1905; Peru, Bolivia, Brazil, 1906-1909; Brazil, tributaries of the Amazon, Urara Cuera, 1913.
- Field, James A., The University of Chicago, Chicago, Ill.

Frick, Childs, Haverford Road, Bryn Mawr, Pa.
British East Africa, 1908-1909; Cassiar, British Columbia, 1909;
French Somaliland and extensively in Abyssinia, 1911-1912.

Frye, Alexis Everett, Villa Cuba, Redlands, Cal.
Egypt, Transcaucasia and Asiatic Turkey, Russia, Turkey, Greece,
1897; Mexico, 1892; Cuba, 1898-1901; Canada, British Columbia,
1895.

Fryer, C. E., McGill University, Montreal, Canada.
Siberia and Manchuria, 1902.

Gay, Dr. Frederick P., University of California, Berkeley, Cal.

Goldthwait, Prof. James Walter, Dartmouth College, Hanover,
N. H.
Magdalen Islands, 1913.

Gordon, George B.,* University Museum, Philadelphia, Pa.

Grew, Joseph Clark, American Embassy, Berlin, Germany.
New Brunswick, 1901; Malay Peninsula, Ceylon, India, including
Kashmir and Baltistan, Burma, China, Japan, 1902-1903; Australia,
New Zealand, 1903; Egypt, 1904-1905; Turkey, Holy Land, 1905;
Russia 1907-1908; Mexico, 1906.

Gulliver, Frederic P., 4843 Walton Avenue, Philadelphia, Pa.

Hallowell, George H., Jefferson Highlands, N. H.

Hay, Clarence L., 800 16th Street, Washington, D. C.

Hayden, Irwin, Hamilton, Mont.

Howe, Dr. Ernest, 77 Rhode Island Avenue, Newport, R. I.
Cuba, Porto Rico, Trinidad, Lesser Antilles, 1903; Oahu, Maui,
Hawaii, 1905; Panama, Canal Zone, 1906-1907.

Hubbard, Gardiner G., 17 West 8th Street, New York City.
Hawaiian Islands, 1900; Japan, China, 1901; Philippines, Borneo,
1902.

Huntington, Ellsworth,* Yale University, New Haven, Conn.
Turkey, 1897-1901; Transcaucasia, Persia, Transcaspia, Afghan-
istan, Chinese Turkestan, 1903-1904; Palestine, Syria, Asia Minor,
1909; India, Chinese Turkestan, Siberia, 1905-1906; Greece, Servia,
Roumania, Bulgaria, Russia, 1897, 1909; Mexico, 1910; Yucatan,
Central America, 1912.

Husband, Joseph, 601 Ash Street, Winnetka, Ill.

Ireland, Alleyne, Editorial Rooms, *The World*, New York
City.

Jackson, Prof. A. V. Williams, Columbia University, New
York City.
India, Ceylon, 1901; Persia, Central Asia, 1903; Algiers, 1905;
Persia, Central Asia, 1907-1910; India, Baluchistan, Egypt, Athens,
Constantinople, 1911.

Johnson, Prof. Douglas Wilson, Columbia University, New
York City.
British Columbia, Maritime Provinces, 1908, 1911.

Landfield, Jerome Barker, Bohemian Club, San Francisco, Cal.
Siberia, 1898, 1899, 1900, 1907; Japan, India, Ceylon, 1907-1908;
Russia, 1894, 1897, 1899, 1903, 1907; Alaska and Arctic, 1900;
Mexico, 1908-1909.

Lythgoe, Albert M., Metropolitan Museum of Art, New York
City.

McCreery, Dr. John A., 1024 Park Avenue, New York City.

MacMillan, Donald B., Freeport, Me.
Greenland, 1908, 1909; Newfoundland, Labrador, 1910, 1911; Can-
ada, 1881, 1900, 1908, 1909, 1910, 1911.

Matthes, François E., care United States Geological Survey,
Washington, D. C.
Alberta, British Columbia, 1911.

Merriam, C. Hart, 1919 16th Street, Washington, D. C.

Mixer, George,* P. O. Box 219, Key West, Florida.
Alaska, 1908; British Columbia, 1910; Northern Quebec, 1909;
Panama, Canal Zone, Jamaica, Siberia near Lake Baikal, Japan,
Korea, China; around the world, 1912.

Morgan, Edwin V., American Embassy, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil.

Morse, Tyler, Westbury, Long Island, N. Y.
Egypt, Abyssinia, Sudan, French Somaliland, Italian Somaliland,
Etruria, 1903.

Muirhead, James F., 24 Belsize Crescent, London, N.W., Eng-
land.
Mexico, Alaska, Canada, 1884-1910.

Nichols, George, 11 Thomas Street, New York City.
Honolulu, 1900-1901.

Nichols, John Treadwell,* American Museum of Natural
History, New York City.
Brazil, Patagonia, Chile, Hawaii, 1901; Bermuda, 1903; Brazil, Pata-
gonia, Hawaii, 1906; British Columbia, 1908; Alberta, 1910;
Havana, Santa Clara Provinces, 1912; Havana, Santiago, Cuba
1913.

Nordenskjöld, Prof. Nils Otto Gustaf, Göteborg, Sweden.
Patagonia, Tierra del Fuego, 1895-1897; Chile, Alaska, Yukon, 1898;
East Greenland, 1900; West Antarctica, 1901-1904; Iceland, 1904;
Spitzbergen, 1906; West Greenland, 1909.

Noyes, Perley H., 14 Wall Street, New York City.
Iceland, 1905; Grenada and Trinidad, 1906.

Palmer, Howard, Hotel Mohican, New London, Conn.
British Columbia, explorations and surveys, Selkirk Mountains,
1907, 1908, 1909, 1910, 1911, 1912.

Penrose, R. A. F., Jr.,* 460 Bullitt Building, Philadelphia, Pa.
Canada, Mexico, 1881-1900; Lapland, Finland, European Russia,
Servia, Roumania, Siberia, China, Japan, Philippines, Malay Penin-
sula, Straits Settlements, Ceylon, Egypt, 1901-1902; Alaska, Yukon
River, Behring Sea, 1903; Sandwich Islands, South Sea Islands,
New Zealand, Australia, Tasmania, Ceylon, 1904; South Africa,
Transvaal, Zanzibar, Egypt, 1906; Brazil, Uruguay, Argentina,
Chile, Tierra del Fuego, Falkland Islands, Cape Verd Islands, 1907;
West Indies, Panama, Venezuela, Peninsula of Lower California,
1908; Malta, Ceylon, Lower and Upper Burma, 1912.

Perin, Charles Page, 2 Rector Street, New York City.

Pumpelly, Raphael,* Newport, R. I.
Northern Africa and Europe, 1912-1913.

Pumpelly, Raphael Wells,* Samarcand, N. C.
Russia, 1902-1904; Greece, Transcaspia, Bokhara, 1906; Pamir,
Caucasia, Chinese Turkestan, 1903-1904; Egypt, 1904; Alaska,
1905; Labrador, 1908; Central America, Mexico, 1909.

Purington, C. W.,* 15 Radnor Place, London, West, England.
Amur River, East Siberia, Nikolaevsk, Onon River, 1907, 1908,
1909, 1910; Cape Nome, Alaska, 1912; Lena River, East Siberia,
1913.

Read, Motte Alston, 8 Atlantic Street, Charleston, S. C.

Reisner, Prof. George A., care Congdon & Co., Cairo, Egypt.
Egypt and Nubia, 1899-1911, 1912-1914; Palestine, 1906-1910.

Rice, Dr. A. Hamilton, The Bath Club, 34 Dover Street, West,
London, England.
Colombia, 1906; Ecuador, Brazil, 1907; explorations in the
Northwest, 1912; explorations in the valley of the Amazon, 1913.

Robinson, Albert G.,* Cosmos Club, Washington, D. C.
Canada, 1877, 1904; Cuba, 1899, 1909; Porto Rico, 1898; Transvaal,
1900; Orange Free State, Philippines, Luzon, Jolo, Bonjao, 1900.

Rockhill, Hon. W. W., Constantinople, Turkey.

Roosevelt, Kermit, Sagamore Hill, Oyster Bay, N. Y.
British East Africa, Uganda, Belgian Congo, Sudan, 1909-1910;
Mexico, 1911.

Saltus, Rollin S., Mt. Kisco, N. Y.
Jamaica, Panama, Cuba.

Scott-Moncrieff, Sir Colin Campbell, 11 Cheyne Walk, Chel-
sea, England.

Scull, Guy H., Harvard Club, New York City.

Sewall, William G., Harvard Club, New York City.

Sexton, Lawrence E., 34 Pine Street, New York City.
Russia, 1872-1876; Canada, 1896 and 1897; Mexico, Cuba, 1901;
British Columbia, Canadian Rockies, 1903.

Smith, Dr. A. Donaldson,* 1820 Chestnut Street, Philadelphia,
Pa.

Smith, Brockholst M., 165 Hope Street, Providence, R. I.

Smith, Dr. Homer B., Lancaster, N. H.

Smith, Dr. Philip S., United States Geological Survey, Wash-
ington, D. C.
Alaska, 1906-1912; Southeastern Alaska, 1913.

Spinden, Herbert J., American Museum of Natural History,
New York City.
Alaska, 1898-1900; Mexico and Southwest, 1909-1911; Guate-
mala, Honduras, British Honduras, 1912; Southwest, 1913.

Stairs, Gilbert S., Royal Trust Building, Montreal, Canada.
Northern Ontario and Quebec, 1903.

Stefánsson, Vilhjalmur,* care American Museum of Natural
History, New York City.
Iceland, 1904-1905; Mackenzie Delta and Arctic Alaska, 1906-
1907; Arctic Alaska, 1908-1909; Arctic mainland coast of Canada,
1909-1910; Victoria Island, Coronation Gulf, and Bear Lake, 1910-
1911; Arctic coast, Canada and Alaska, 1911-1912.

Stetson, John B., Jr., Ashbourne, Pa.
Southwest, among Hopi, Pueblo, and Apache Indians; Egypt.

Sturgis, Dr. William C.,* Colorado Springs, Colo.
British Columbia, 1904, 1906; Argentine Republic, 1901; Greece,
Russia, Turkey, 1884, 1886, 1887; India, Turkey, Mesopotamia,
Malay Peninsula, China, Japan, 1884-1886; Egypt, Tunisia, 1885-
1905.

Swaim, Dr. Loring Tiffany, Clifton Springs, N. Y.
Alaska, 1901; West Indies, 1912.

- Swain, Prescott L., 149 Broadway, New York City.
- Thacher, John Hamilton, 927 New York Life Building, Kansas City, Mo.
Morocco, Tangier, Casa Blanca, wild boar hunting in interior and near Rubat, 1903, 1906, 1911; Mexico, 1913.
- Tyson, Russell, 247 Monadnock Block, Chicago, Ill.
China, Manchuria, Korea, Japan, 1909.
- Wands, Ernest H.,* 122 East 82d Street, New York City.
Colombia, Ecuador, Peru, Bolivia, Chile, Argentina, Uruguay, Brazil, Venezuela, 1898, 1901, 1903, 1909, 1910; Costa Rica, Nicaragua, Salvador, Guatemala, 1911; Porto Rico, 1899; Cuba, 1898-1911; Caribbean Islands, Mexico, 1911.
- Wheelwright, D. P., 200 Fifth Avenue, New York City.
- Will, George F., Bismarck, N. D.
- Winlock, Herbert E., Metropolitan Museum of Art, New York City.
- Winship, George Parker, John Carter Brown Library, Providence, R. I.
Yucatan, Southern Mexico, 1911; British Columbia, 1905.
- Wood, Gen. Leonard,* Governor's Island, New York Harbor, N. Y.
- Ybarra, Thomas R., Harvard Club, New York City.

In Memoriam

DR. FREDERICK CLARK PAULMIER,
March 3, 1906.

DR. EDWARD GARDINER GARDINER,
November 4, 1907.

DR. JOHN BRYANT,
March 20, 1908.

JOHN W. HASTINGS,
April 26, 1908.

J. MONTGOMERY SEARS,
August 12, 1908.

PROF. JOHN H. WRIGHT,
November 25, 1908.

DR. CHARLES B. PORTER,
May 21, 1909.

PROF. JAMES BARR AMES,
January 8, 1910.

WILLIAM BAYARD CUTTING, JR.,
March 10, 1910.

DR. HERBERT L. BURRELL,
April 26, 1910.

GEORGE C. BUELL,

December, 1910.

DR. WALTER R. BRINCKERHOFF,

March 2, 1911.

SAMUEL F. EMMONS,

March 28, 1911.

DR. CHARLES GODDARD WELD,

June 18, 1911.

WILLIAM TAGGARD PIPER,

July 25, 1911.

PROF. A. LAWRENCE ROTCH,

April 7, 1912.

DR. ARTHUR TRACY CABOT,

November 4, 1912.

JOHN HAYS GARDINER,

May 14, 1913.

R. CLIPSTON STURGIS, JR.,

October 18, 1913.

HENRY P. KING,

October 31, 1913.